
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams (Agenda) Graham Watts (Minutes) 03450 450 500 
democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1 July 2015 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor Sue Ellington 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor Charles Nightingale 
 Members of the Civic Affairs Committee – Councillors David Bard, 

Nigel Cathcart, Simon Edwards, James Hockney, Sebastian Kindersley, 
Ray Manning, Raymond Matthews, Deborah Roberts, Bridget Smith and 
Bunty Waters 

Quorum: 4 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of CIVIC AFFAIRS COMMITTEE, which will be held 
in MONKFIELD ROOM, FIRST FLOOR at South Cambridgeshire Hall on THURSDAY, 9 JULY 
2015 at 2.00 p.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
JEAN HUNTER 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 
 

 
AGENDA 

PAGES 
 PROCEDURAL ITEMS   
 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To receive Apologies for Absence from Committee members.  
   
2. Declarations of Interest    
 
3. Minutes of Previous Meeting   1 - 4 
 To authorise the Chairman to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 

January 2015 as a correct record. 
 

   
 DECISION ITEMS   
 
4. Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LBGCE)  5 - 14 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 
t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



Electoral Review - Consulting on "all-out" elections and Council size  
 
 INFORMATION ITEMS   
 
5. Community Governance Reviews Update - Verbal Report    
 A verbal update will be given on the following Community Governance 

Reviews: 
• Trumpington Meadows 
• Darwin Green 2/3 
• Northstowe 
• Cambourne West 

 

   
6. Update on Code of Conduct Complaints   15 - 16 
 
7. Matters of Topical Interest   17 - 20 
 Attached is an article on the first councillor to be convicted of a 

disclosable pecuniary interest offence. 
 

   
 STANDING ITEMS   
 
8. Date of Next Meeting    
 Committee members are asked to bring their diaries.  
   

 
OUR LONG-TERM VISION 

 
South Cambridgeshire will continue to be the best place to live, work and study in the country. 
Our district will demonstrate impressive and sustainable economic growth. Our residents will 
have a superb quality of life in an exceptionally beautiful, rural and green environment. 
 
 

OUR VALUES 
 

We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are: 
• Working Together 
• Integrity 
• Dynamism 
• Innovation 
  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 Notes to help those people visiting the South Cambridgeshire District Council offices  
While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall, you also have a 
responsibility for your own safety, and that of others. 
 
Security 
When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to Reception, sign in, 
and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued.  Before leaving the building, please sign out and return the 
Visitor badge to Reception. 
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic Services on 03450 450 
500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Leave the building using the nearest escape route; 
from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside the 
door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park opposite the staff  entrance 

• Do not use the lifts to leave the building.  If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the 
emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a minimum of 1.5 
hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our agendas and minutes. 
We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and 
we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  There are 
disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are available in 
the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter 
and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If your hearing 
aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 
We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, filming and photography 
at Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long as proceedings 
at the meeting are not disrupted.  We also allow the use of social media during meetings to bring Council 
issues to the attention of a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, 
please switch your phone or other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard, poster or other 
similar item.  Failure to do so, will result in the Chairman suspending the meeting until such items are 
removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chairman will warn the person 
concerned.  If they continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If 
there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call 
for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be suspended until order has been restored. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free Policy. No one is 
allowed to smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of 
those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  You are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
   



This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Civic Affairs Committee held on 
Thursday, 15 January 2015 at 11.00 a.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor David Bard – Chairman 
  Councillor Kevin Cuffley – Vice-Chairman 
 
Councillors:  Nigel Cathcart Simon Edwards 
 James Hockney Sebastian Kindersley 
 Douglas de Lacey Deborah Roberts 
 Bridget Smith Jim Stewart 
 Bunty Waters  
 
Officers:  Andrew Francis Electoral Services Manager 
 Fiona McMillan Legal & Democratic Services Manager and 

Monitoring Officer 
 Graham Watts Democratic Services Team Leader 
 
Advisors: Grant Osbourn  Independent Person 
 
Councillor Aidan Van de Weyer was in attendance, by invitation. 
 
The Chairman opened the meeting by reporting that Grace Everson, former Parish Council elected 
representative on the Council’s former Standards Committee between 2002 and 2008, had recently 
passed away.  Members paid tribute to Grace’s work on the Standards Committee and observed a 
moment of silence in her memory. 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received by Councillors Alison Elcox and Ray Manning.  

Gillian Holmes, the Council’s Deputy Independent Person, also submitted her apologies 
for absence. 
 
Councillor James Hockney was present as a substitute in place of Councillor Ray 
Manning. 

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Councillor Sebastian Kindersley declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 6 as he chaired 

a working group at Cambridgeshire County Council that had considered issues relating to 
the electoral review. 

  
3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 25 September 2014 were confirmed and 

signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
  
4. RECORDED VOTES AT FULL COUNCIL 
 
 Graham Watts, Democratic Services Team Leader, presented a report which set out the 

following motion from Councillor Aidan Van de Weyer that was referred to the Civic Affairs 
Committee from the meeting of Full Council on 27 November 2014: 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 15 January 2015 

“This Council agrees that all votes, except for those taken by affirmation and for 
appointments, be recorded in the manner described in Standing Order 16.5 (Recorded 
Vote) and that the Constitution be amended accordingly”. 
 
Councillor Van de Weyer explained that openness was very important and that, in his 
view, the way in which voting currently took place at meetings of Full Council was not fully 
transparent.  He therefore wanted to see the names of Members and how they voted on 
individual proposals recorded in the minutes of meetings of Full Council for all votes 
carried out, except for those on appointments or decisions taken by affirmation. 
 
In debating the motion, the following points were noted: 
 
• nothing had changed since the last time this issue had been debated, so the 

original decision to retain existing arrangements should stand; 
• recorded voting for the majority of decisions made by the Council might put 

pressure on individual Members in political groups to vote inline with the party 
rather than vote with their conscience; 

• assurances had been given from the Leaders of political parties that no party whips 
were in place.  The Council’s consideration of the Local Development Plan was 
evidence of this; 

• the proposed change was unnecessary as the Council’s Standing Orders already 
included provision for recorded votes to take place as and when required; 

• Members were elected to exercise their judgement on behalf of residents, so 
providing an opportunity for people to see how their local Member voted on a 
particular subject was an extension of that arrangement; 

• Brandon Lewis MP, in his original letter regarding the new requirement for all votes 
on budget items at Full Council meetings to be recorded, made the point that the 
change was about transparency of decision making; 

• local government was moving into a new realm of expectation.  The Council had to 
respond to that and ‘secret’ voting was an old-fashioned way of working.  Members 
should be completely accountable for their actions; 

• social media was being widely used at meetings, reporting on who was in support 
or against specific proposals based on the content of their speeches.  However, a 
Member saying they were in support of a proposal in a speech did not necessarily 
mean they would vote in favour. 

 
Voting on the motion, with 4 votes in favour and 5 against, the Civic Affairs Committee 
RECOMMENDED that the motion be lost. 
 
Discussion ensued on the related-issue of recording or webcasting meetings of Full 
Council and the Civic Affairs Committee REQUESTED that a report be submitted to its 
next meeting on the feasibility and options for recording or webcasting future meetings of 
Full Council. 

  
5. PETITIONS SCHEME 
 
 Graham Watts, Democratic Services Team Leader, presented a report which provided the 

Civic Affairs Committee with an opportunity to consider a revised version of the Council’s 
Petitions Scheme. 
 
The following points were noted during discussion: 
 
• the revised scheme should make it clear that e-petitions could still be used, rather 

than petitioners having to solely submit paper versions of petitions; 

Page 2



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 15 January 2015 

• it would be difficult for some smaller Parishes to achieve the 100 signature 
threshold that would trigger a debate at a meeting of Full Council.  A percentage 
based on the electorate for small Parishes should therefore be introduced; 

• the Chairman should be able to use his or her discretion to allow debate to exceed 
the maximum time limit of 30 minutes, if necessary; 

• in answer to a question regarding the Council’s e-petition system, it was apparent 
that a process of verification needed to be investigated and introduced in respect 
of electronic signatories to petitions. 

 
The Civic Affairs Committee RECOMMENDED the revised Petitions Scheme to Full 
Council for approval, subject to the following: 
 
(a) The inclusion of clear reference to the use of e-petitions, including a link to and 

instructions for the Council’s e-petitions facility. 
 
(b) The inclusion of a Chairman’s discretion enabling the debate of a petition at a 

meeting of Full Council to exceed a maximum of 30 minutes if necessary. 
 
(c) The replacement of the word ‘unsatisfied’ with ‘dissatisfied’ on the final heading of 

the Scheme. 
 
(d) The inclusion of a percentage-based trigger for smaller parishes in respect of 

petitions for debate at a meeting of Full Council. 
 
The Civic Affairs Committee REFERRED the issue of e-petition verification to the Portfolio 
Holder for Corporate and Customer Services for consideration. 

  
6. COUNTY ELECTORAL REVIEW 
 
 Andrew Francis, Electoral Services Manager, presented details of the Local Government 

Boundary Commission for England’s review of Cambridgeshire County Council.  It was 
noted that the 12 week public consultation inviting proposals for new electoral 
arrangements closed on 19 January 2015, so the Civic Affairs Committee was invited to 
submit a response to the consultation on behalf of South Cambridgeshire District Council. 
 
Members made the following points during discussion: 
 
• the housing permissions and allocations included in the electoral forecasts for 

South Cambridgeshire District Council were inaccurate and did not reflect planned 
new developments, particularly the growth figures for Northstowe which had been 
incorrectly split between Longstanton and Oakington; 

• there were a number of errors in the data for Parish Council sizes across the 
District, with Barrington, Girton and Melbourn cited at the meeting as examples.  It 
was apparent, however, that many of the Parish sizes were incorrect in the 
document and there were also cases where Parishes had been identified as 
consisting of one Parish Councillor when in fact they had Parish Meetings in place.  
Mr Francis emphasised that this document had not been produced by South 
Cambridgeshire District Council and that his Elections Team had not been 
contacted or requested to provide any information as part of its production; 

• Members noted that protecting the identities of local communities was one of the 
central aims of the Local Government Boundary Commission for England and the 
Committee supported that principle.  It was agreed that this should be reflected 
within the Committee’s response, together with a request that this issue be 
considered  very carefully as part of the boundary review. 

Page 3



Civic Affairs Committee Thursday, 15 January 2015 

The Civic Affairs Committee unanimously AGREED to submit a response to the Local 
Government Boundary Commission for England on the boundary review of 
Cambridgeshire, highlighting the following issues: 
 
(a) The Committee strongly disagreed with the housing permissions and allocations 

included in the elections forecasts for South Cambridgeshire. 
 
(b) The Committee expressed its disappointment at the inaccurate record of parish 

electorates by individual parish, particularly regarding Parish Council size.  
 
(c) The Committee asked that the principle of protecting the identities of local 

communities was considered very carefully as part of the boundary review. 
  
7. UPDATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
 
 Fiona McMillan, Legal and Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring Officer, 

presented a report which updated the Civic Affairs Committee on complaints cases 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct. 
 
The report was NOTED. 

  
8. MATTERS OF TOPICAL INTEREST 
 
 Fiona McMillan, Legal and Democratic Services Manager and Monitoring Officer, provided 

the Civic Affairs Committee with information on a case at another Council whereby the 
Crown Prosecution Service had instituted proceedings against the Leader of Dorset 
County Council for three offences under the Localism Act. 
 
It was noted that this was thought to be the first case where powers under the Localism 
Act had been used to prosecute a Member in relation to failing to declare an interest. 

  
9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 It was noted that the next meeting of the Civic Affairs Committee would be held on 23 April 

2015 at 10.30am. 
  

 
 

  
The Meeting ended at 12.30 p.m. 

 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  
Report To: Civic Affairs Committee 9 July 2015 
Lead Officer: Chief Executive/Legal & Democratic Services Manager 

 
 

 
Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) Electoral Review - 

Consulting on a potential move to “all-out” elections and Council response on Council size 
 
Purpose 

 
1. This report has three purposes: 

 
(a) To formally inform the Civic Affairs Committee of the forthcoming LGBCE review 

of South Cambridgeshire District Council. 
 

(b) To ask the Committee whether it would like the Council to consult on a potential 
move to “all-out” elections, where whole Council elections are held every four 
years, instead of the current system of elections by thirds, AND;  

 
(c) To ask the Committee to consider the Council’s approach to submitting a 

preferred Council Size to the LGBCE.  
 
2. Matters relating to elections are non-executive functions which must be determined by 

the Council, not Cabinet. Council previously considered a move to “all-out” elections in 
2006, 2008 and 2010. 

 
Options 

 
3. The Civic Affairs Committee may: 

 
(a) AGREE that a consultation exercise as outlined at section 25a below 

commences on a proposal to move to a scheme of “all-out” elections, such 
elections to take place in May 2018 and every four years thereafter; OR 
 

(b) AGREE NOT to open consultation on this matter at this stage. This decision will 
then be referred on to the next Council meeting for ratification. 

 
4. The Civic Affairs Committee should also consider if and how the Council should form a 

collective view on a proposed Council size. For example, the Committee may choose to 
delegate authority to the group leaders to work with Officers to put together an evidence 
backed proposal on Council size. This could be bought back to the Committee for a 
subsequent recommendation to Council. 

 
Background 

 
5. The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) has recently started 

a review of South Cambridgeshire District Council’s electoral arrangements. 
 

6. This review has been initiated due to electoral inequality across the district. This means 
that members in some wards represent many more electors than members in others. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



The review will look to equalise these ratios across a new warding pattern that looks to 
retain local community links where possible. 
 

7. The review is scheduled to start formally in November 2015, with final recommendations 
being published in August 2016. Implementation is planned for May 2018. 
 
Warding Patterns 
 

8. South Cambridgeshire District Council currently has 57 members across a mixture of 
one, two and three member wards, with elections taking place “by thirds” (a third of seats 
up for election in each of three consecutive years).  
 

9. The LGBCE has been clear in its discussions with the Council, that retention of a pattern 
of elections “by thirds” will result in a warding arrangement of three member wards 
across the district. 
 

10. If the Council were to resolve to move to “all-out” elections (all seats being contested in 
the same year), then the LGBCE would be likely to implement a more mixed warding 
pattern favouring  single member wards where possible. 
 

11. The LGBCE does not have the power to change the electoral cycle of a principal area 
council. A resolution to move to “all-out” elections would need to be made by a specially 
convened meeting of Council. The resolution would require approval from two thirds of 
the voting members present. Any resolution needs to be made before the formal start of 
the review. 
 

12. The Council is required to “take reasonable steps to consult on the change” prior to any 
resolution but there is discretion as to what type of consultation to hold or how long the 
process should take.  It is suggested that an eight week consultation period be run 
between 13th July and 4th September using the letter attached as Appendix 1.  It is 
proposed that the letter would be sent to Cambridgeshire County Council, all parish 
councils within South Cambridgeshire, local Members of Parliament and all the political 
parties and is also placed on the Council’s website. A press release would also be 
issued to all the relevant media outlets.  
 
Council Size 
 

13. As part of the preliminary stages of the review the Council has been invited to submit its 
evidence backed view on Council size. Any response by the Council on potential Council 
size must be submitted before the formal start of the review. 
 

14. The LGBCE has published guidance to assist in submitting a proposal on Council size. 
The guidance identifies three key areas that must be considered when proposing a 
Council size: 

 
• The governance arrangements at SCDC – how we take decisions across our range 

of responsibilities and whether there are any planned changes to our current 
arrangements 

• The council’s scrutiny functions and the council’s responsibilities to outside bodies 
and whether any changes to either are being considered 

• The representational role of councillors in the local community – how SCDC 
councillors engage with people, conduct casework and represent the council on local 
partner organisations 
 

Page 6



15. It will be important that the council’s proposal includes a “vision” for what the council will 
look like over next 5-10 years so that future trends or plans are reflected in the 
proposals, not just current arrangements. 
 

16. As part of their consideration of the three key areas members will need to address the 
following issues:  

 
• Do the leader and portfolio holders consider their roles to be full-time? 
• Do councillors feel that the time they spend on council business is what they 

expected when they became a councillor? 
• How much time do individual members spend on council business? 
• What time do members spend work which flows from their membership of outside 

bodies they have been appointed to by the Council? 
• What activities are scrutiny members expected to carry out between formal 

meetings? 
• How do SCDC councillors deal with case work from constituents and what time does 

this take? 
• What sort of role does each SCDC councillor have in their local communities? How 

do they engage with people? 
• What support do they receive from SCDC regarding their ward work? 
• Has the role of councillors changed since SCDC last considered how many 

members it should have in 2010?  And it is likely to change in next 5-10years? 
• Is there an expectation that councillors attend parish council or community 

association meetings?  What is their level of involvement and how much time does it 
take? 

 
17. The Committee could consider whether they wish officers to survey all members on 

these issues or whether this is work that could be carried out within each political group. 
 

18. It is important to note that the LGBCE prefer to see requests on Council size that are 
supported across the Council. If no submission is made, or there are conflicting views, 
the LGBCE will form its own decision. If a reasonable, well-supported and evidenced 
proposal is submitted, it will be looked upon favourably. 
 
Considerations 

 
19. The Civic Affairs Committee is not being asked at this time whether it recommends 

moving to “all-out” elections. The Committee are being asked to authorise 
commencement of a consultation exercise on a potential change. The results of this 
exercise will be bought back to the Committee later in the year, at which point the 
Committee can make a recommendation to a special meeting of Council. 
 

20. Any resolution that the Council does make will need to be made before November, so 
that the changes can be integrated into the formal start of the LGBCE review. 
 

21. Whilst a resolution to move to “all-out” elections is not within the remit of this decision, it 
may be useful for the Committee to consider the potential implications of retaining 
election “by thirds” or moving to “all-out”. Appendix 1 gives additional detail. 
 

Electing “By Thirds” OR Electing “All-out” 
 

- Retention of elections “by thirds” will not see retention of the existing warding 
pattern. The district will end up split into three member wards. A move to “all-

Page 7



out” elections could see a district of mostly single member wards. There is 
very limited scope to vary these arrangements. 
 

- Electing “by thirds” potentially allows for more gradual change at the Council, 
instead of potentially big changes every four years. This means that new 
councillors can learn from more experienced ones. A counterargument is that 
there may be greater certainty in planning over a longer term with “all-out” 
elections. 

 
- Election “by thirds” is considerably more expensive than “all-out” elections, 

and will become even more so if the district is split wholly into three member 
wards as seems likely. 

 
- Elections “by thirds” may present opportunities for younger people to 

participate in elections earlier. However they may also result in reduced 
turnouts as a result of voter fatigue. 

 
22. The LGBCE review is scheduled for implementation in May 2018. Any move to “all-out” 

elections should also be scheduled for this year to minimise costs and inconvenience to 
members. 
 

23. As part of the preliminary work of the review, the LGBCE identified the Council’s 15 
“nearest neighbour” authorities. The Council size of these authorities varies between 57 
and 36. 
 

24. Effect on parish council elections – If the District Council does resolve to move to “all-
out” elections, it is permitted to make an order bringing parish council elections back in 
line with the revised electoral cycle. This would help parish councils avoid the potential 
cost of standalone elections. 
  
Options 

 
25. The Civic Affairs Committee can decide to 

 
(a) Start a consultation exercise asking for views on whether the Council should 

resolve to move to “all-out” elections. 
 
It is suggested that the details of this consultation should be sent to Parish 
Councils, District Councillors, County Councillors and Members of Parliament, 
and should be advertised on the Council website as well. It can also be sent to 
the Youth Council. 

 
The results of this consultation exercise will be presented to the Committee later 
in the year and they can decide then on whether a recommendation can be made 
to Council. 

 
(b) Do nothing.  
 

26. The Committee should also decide on an approach to responding to the LGBCE 
regarding a proposed Council Size. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Implications 
 

27. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk 
management, equality and diversity, climate change, community safety and any other 
key issues, the following implications have been considered: - 

 
Financial 
 

28. For a number of reasons (combination of polls, postage increases, cross boundary 
issues), forecasting the cost of elections is challenging. However, it is absolutely clear 
that moving to “all-out” elections would result in year on year savings for the Council.  

 
The upshot of three member wards across the district will be that all electors will be able 
to vote in each of the Council’s election years. Consequently the cost of running 
elections in just one of those three years will be roughly the same as the cost of running 
Council elections in an “all-out” year. 

 
 Legal 
 
29. Sections 31-36 and Section 53 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in 

Health Act 2007 (as amended by Schedule 2 of the Localism Act 2011) set out the 
relevant provisions the Council would be required to follow in order to move to “all-out” 
elections. Council would be required to make the change by way of a resolution at an 
Extraordinary Council meeting specially convened for the purpose and two-thirds of 
members voting would need to be in favour of the change. If it is decided to move to “all-
out” elections the Council must publish an explanatory document setting out details of 
the new electoral arrangements and the Electoral Commission would also have to be 
formally advised.  

 
Staffing 

 
30. Work required to take forward a proposal to move to “all-out” elections can be 

undertaken within existing resources. 
 
 Risk Management 
 
31. There is a small amount of business continuity risk in moving to “all-out” elections. 

However such risks would be taken into account as part of the Council’s normal risk 
management procedures as required.  
 

32. Equality and Diversity 
 
Any consultation process would be subject to an Equality Impact Assessment before 
being finalised in order to ensure that all sections of the community have the opportunity 
to have their views heard.  

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

33. Links to the efficient and effective running of the business and to civic participation in 
democracy. 

 
Background Papers 
 
The Local Government Boundary Commission for England, Guidance on Electoral Reviews 
www.LGBCE.org.uk  

Page 9



 
The Local Government Boundary Commission for England, Guidance on Council Size, 
www.LGBCE.org.uk  

 
Report Author: Fiona McMillan – Legal & Democratic Services Manager 

Telephone (01954) 713027 
 
Andrew Francis – Electoral Services Manager 
Telephone (01954) 713014 

Page 10



 

 
 

 
 Consultation on 
proposed changes to the 
Local Elections system from 
thirds to all-out elections 

 

  

 
1. We would welcome your views by Friday 4 September 2015 on whether to move from 

the present system of electing the District Council by thirds to proposals for all-out 
elections so that all SCDC councillors would be elected together at the same time, 
once every four years. 

 
 Why are we consulting on this proposal? 
 
2. The District Council comprises 57 councillors, representing 34 Wards across South 

Cambridgeshire. A councillor’s normal term of office is four years, unless elected in an 
unscheduled by-election. The Local Government Boundary Commission for England 
(LGBCE) will soon be starting a review of South Cambridgeshire District Council’s 
electoral arrangements.  
 

3. The Commission has identified electoral inequality across the district. This means that 
members in some wards represent many more electors than members in others. The 
review will look to iron out these inequalities, whilst keeping community identity.  
 

4. One of the first steps in the review is to agree the right Council size; that is, the total 
number of councillors needed to represent our district effectively. Whilst some wards 
have one councillor, others are represented by two or three. If we stick to electing by 
thirds, the Commission will look to introduce three-councillor Wards across the district. 
If we move to ‘all-out’ elections, the pattern is likely to see more single-councillor 
Wards. 
 

5. Councillors have considered a move to all-out elections before, most recently in 2010 
when we decided to stick with thirds. The relevance of this issue to the upcoming 
boundary review means it’s timely now to reconsider the issue.  

 
 The present system – ‘Electing by Thirds’ 
 
6. Currently, elections for one third of the Council’s seats are held three years out of every 

four (in May). This means that all seats are elected once during that period. Wards with 
a single district councillor have an election once every four years. Residents in wards 
with more than one seat on the District Council get to choose a representative two or 
three times during the four-year cycle. In every ward, elections to parish councils are 
held at the same time as an election to the District Council. 

 
 

Page 11



 

 
 

 Moving to ‘All Out’ elections 
 
7. Councillors will take into account the results of this consultation before voting on 

whether to change at a special Council meeting in October 2015. The law requires two 
thirds of councillors to vote in favour of moving to all-out elections. If this proposal is 
agreed, it’s likely that the first all-out election would take place in 2018; waiting until 
2018 avoids clashing with all-out elections to Cambridgeshire County Council in 2017, 
and will provide time to complete the boundary review. This would mean that any 
councillors elected in 2016 (when a third of our seats will be elected to, in line with the 
current cycle), would serve shortened, two-year terms of office rather than the usual 
four. Assuming “all-out” elections begin in 2018, they would subsequently take place in 
2022, 2026 and so on. 

 
 Pros and Cons 
 
8. The Council’s Civic Affairs Committee agreed to carry out this public consultation on 9 

July 2015 (the minutes of the meeting can be found on our website at 
www.scambs.gov.uk). In reaching this decision, the Committee had some initial 
discussions about the merits of each case. Here are some of the key points. 

 
The case for the present system 
‘Electing by Thirds’ 

The case for the proposed change 
‘All-Out’ elections 

• Resulting Three-Member Ward 
arrangement guarantees all residents 
consistent voting rights, three years out of 
four. 

• More regular opportunities to hold elected 
councillors to account for key policy 
decisions 

• It can help voters to focus on local issues, 
which might otherwise be drowned out by 
national issues and campaigning by 
political parties. 

• It can allow more gradual change at the 
Council, rather than the possibility of big 
political change every four years. New 
councillors can learn from more 
experienced ones. 

• “If it ain’t broke, don’t fix it.” 

• Avoids an absolute requirement for three-
Councillor Wards, which may not be an 
appropriate model to impose upon a large 
rural district. 

• Voters can make more informed 
judgements on four-year manifesto and 
individual candidate commitments, thus 
providing a clearer mandate to help the 
Council adopt a more strategic, long-term 
approach to policy and decision-making. 

• Clearer opportunity for the electorate to 
change the political composition of the 
council once every four years. 

• Holding whole-Council elections once 
every four years, rather than smaller 
elections every three years out of four, 
would cost less and be less disruptive for 
public buildings used as polling stations, 
especially schools. 

• The results from all-out elections are 
simpler and more easily understood by 
the electorate, which may increase 

Page 12



 

 
 

turnout and avoid the confusion and 
‘election fatigue’ which can arise from the 
current system of thirds. 

   
  

  
  

 
Have your say 

Please let us know your views about the proposals by Friday 4 September 2015 by 
completing the on-line survey form / Tweeting #scdcthirds or #scdcallout / paper copy. As 
well as indicating which option you or your organisation prefers, please briefly explain the 
reasons for this. (If you would not be prepared for your views to be reported to a future 
Council meeting, please let us know.)  
 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Civic Affairs Committee 9th July 2015 
AUTHOR/S: Monitoring Officer 

 
 

UPDATE ON CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
 

Purpose 
 
1. To update members on complaints cases regarding alleged breaches of the code of 

conduct. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
That the Civic Affairs Committee note the progress of any outstanding complaints 
and the conclusion of cases resolved since the last meeting. 
  

3. New complaint cases/cases concluded since January 2015 committee meeting: 
 

(a) CORCOM 1531 
 
This complaint was made by a member of the public about two parish 
councillors in respect of written comments made in an email exchange by one 
of the councillors, which were supported by the other councillor, which the 
complainant found insulting. The Monitoring Officer and Independent Person 
found that neither councillor had breached the code of conduct and that no 
further action should be taken. 
 

(b) CORCOM 1588 
 
This complaint was made by an officer of another local authority in relation to 
correspondence between a district councillor and members of the 
complainant’s team. The complainant was worried that the councillor had 
used their position as a councillor to improperly try to obtain preferential 
treatment for a member of the councillor’s family on a private issue by signing 
themselves off as “Councillor”. The Monitoring Officer is currently awaiting a 
response from the complainant having been forwarded the Councillor’s 
response to the complaint. 
 

(c) CORCOM 1607 
 
This complaint is from three members of the public about two parish 
councillors at a parish council meeting and subsequently. The Monitoring 
Officer is currently considering the evidence that has been submitted 
alongside the council’s independent person before deciding what action, if 
any, is necessary. 
 

(d) CORCOM 1615 
 
This complaint was made by a member of the public (who was a former parish 
councillor) against a parish council chairman in relation to comments made by 
the chairman at a parish council meeting when dealing with the issue of the 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



resignation of the complainant.  The Monitoring Officer is currently awaiting 
further information from the complainant to support their complaint. 
 

(e) CORCOM 1641 
 
This complaint was made by a member of the public (a former parish 
councillor) about the behaviour of a parish councillor at parish council 
meetings and in email correspondence. The complaint has been just been 
opened and has yet to be progressed. 
 

(f) CORCOM 1642 
 
This complaint is from three district councillors about the behaviour of another 
district councillor at a meeting of the district council, subsequent meetings of 
parish councils and via email correspondence. The Monitoring Officer had 
requested that further supporting information be submitted from the 
complainants which has now been sent to the councillor and a response to the 
complaint is awaited.  
 

(g) CORCOM 1659 
 
This complaint is from two members of the public about a parish councillor 
involving comments made in email exchanges by the councillor about them. 
This complaint has just been opened and has yet to be progressed. 
 

4. Other complaints  
 
The Monitoring Officer continues to advise a number of parish councils in relation to 
conduct-related issues, such as when and how to declare interests, which do not yet 
form the basis of a formal complaint.  
 
 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  Localism Act 2011 
            SCDC Code of Conduct Complaints procedures 

 
Contact Officer:   Fiona McMillan - Monitoring Officer      Tel: (01954) 713027 

Page 16



Local Government Lawyer - Councillor first to be convicted of Localism Act pecuniary interest offence

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



Local Government Lawyer - Councillor first to be convicted of Localism Act pecuniary interest offence

Page 18



Local Government Lawyer - Councillor first to be convicted of Localism Act pecuniary interest offence

Page 19



Local Government Lawyer - Councillor first to be convicted of Localism Act pecuniary interest offence

Page 20


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LBGCE) Electoral Review - Consulting on "all-out" elections and Council size
	LGBCE Electoral Review - appendix 1

	6 Update on Code of Conduct Complaints
	7 Matters of Topical Interest

